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Comments and opinions are made ​​on the basis of the factual materials, received from the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Georgia. In particular, based on the project of the action plan prepared by the Georgian side, which is given in the annex of the answer, received from the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Georgia on 24th January, 2012 in response to the request of IDFI №20120103 submitted on 4th January, 2012.
Before the starting of review of the action plan project, we consider it necessary to make general overview of the initiative “Open Government Partnership” implementation preconditions. This is essential in order to be reasonably determined the priorities of the country in the framework of international cooperation for the dignity appearance of Georgia.  
"Open Government" initiative is related to a new form of governance, such as e-Democracy. Electronic democracy is based upon E-Governance and implies interaction of modern informational and communication technologies; their adaptation to universal standards of democratic values. Electronic democracy requires electronic engagement of governments, voters, political parties and social groups in democratic processes. A more active and higher standard of interaction and accountability is introduced. 

Electronic democracy introduces totally new forms of communication between the government and a citizen: 

· e-Engagement - public participation in the policy making process via electronic networks;

· e-Consultation - electronic interaction between public servants, the citizens and interest groups;

· e-Controllership – electronic management and control of expenditures of state agencies, performance and service quality. 
At the same time, one of the most important milestones of electronic as well as representative democracy is the government transparency because only the society based upon mutual trust and the government accountability can govern the state functioning by democratic principles. 
We would also like to mention that Electronic Governance Concept in its initial form dedicated less attention to development of electronic transparency component because it was oriented at reduction of administrative expenses and improvement of quality of governance efficiency by providing electronic services. One of the reasons was inexistence of relevant legislative norms/regulations which would provide a legal framework required for electronic transparency introduction. Though, the world economic crisis in 2008 changed many things in this direction. First of all these changes were caused by unprecedented reduction of society’s trust in business and state sectors. It was against the background of the global economic crisis that the leading democratic countries became sure about necessity to introduce new standards of electronic transparency. One of the most modern examples is the US President’s innovative strategy “Transparent and Open Government Initiative”. 
Interestingly, this initiative first of all addressed transparency of the government’s electronic resources. According to the elaborated directive, the US “Open Government” Initiative was implemented in the Internet-space. The directive obliged all state agencies to develop openness policy in four main directions: 

1. Publish Public Information Online – Public information should be published in a timely manner and in a format available to population. At the same time, proactive publication of public information should promote reduction of the number of official requests of public information (FOIA). All state structures were commissioned to create a separate section of an open government on their own WebPages http://www.[agency].gov/open;

2. Improve the Quality of Government Information – Creation of control mechanisms over qualitative indices of governmental information, assessment of  information objectivity; 

3. Creation and institutionalize the open government approach – Each state structure should create and introduce its own strategy of open government. “Open Government” management panel should be created for coordination of the Initiative- www.whitehouse.gov/open; 

4. Creation of Logical Framework of Open Government Policy 
 –Practical introduction of innovative technical achievements for implementation of the open government idea, improvement of the communication quality between government and society. http://www.whitehouse.gov/open/documents/open-government-directive
According to Barack Obama’s initiative and the directive of the “Office of Management and Budget” several important electronic projects were implemented in the US which significantly increased the transparency level in the US and enhanced the accountability of the President Administration to its citizens:

· At first, the list of all visitors/guests of the White House was published. By means of this electronic database Americans are able to see whose opinions the White House Administration considers in the policy-formation and planning process; http://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/disclosures/visitor-records 
· Also, it was for the first time when public information about salaries of the President Administration employees was published online and it became possible to obtain annual financial reports of public officials employed by the Administration; http://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/disclosures/annual-records/2010 

· Online resource was created where users can become fully acquainted with projects sponsored according to the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and their financial reporting (787 billion USD) - www.recovery.gov;

· A large-scale project “Electronic Database” was initiated by the Administration of the President in May 2009 – “www.data.gov. “ On the web-resource created within the project framework, public data owned by various departments and agencies of the US Government are publishing online. The web-portal already includes 167 000 various certificates regarding activities of the Federal Government. Such a universal electronic database based upon “one-stop-shop principle”, facilitates users to obtain information about significant data accumulated in governmental structures. It is also noteworthy that the database is updated considering desires and advices of users on a regular basis.

· The US citizens are enabled to use online resource - www.usaspending.gov. The database contains information about grants issued by the US Government, contracts, financial assistance and other spending activities. Any person concerned can become acquainted with official data of disposing federal budget allocations which introduces a new standard of government accountability and enhances credibility between population and the governing elite. 

· One more important innovation was validated from June 2009.  A special web-resource - www.it.usaspending.gov  was created where the amount invested by the US Government in IT sector (approximately 78 billion USD annually) is reflected and financed projects, programs and list of tendencies are provided. The IT control panel enables the IT specialists to observe the development of this field, participate in various discussions, and make corrections to the process of project planning and implementation. 

· Taxpayers in the US have an opportunity to monitor financial expenses paid by the state for foreign assistance, development dynamics, and available statistical data. Information can be obtained at the website created especially for this purpose by the USAID - www.

 HYPERLINK "http://www.foreignassistance.gov/"
foreignassistance.gov.

· Within the framework of the "Open Government" initiative the US Government dedicates significant attention not only to its own transparency and accountability before society but also activation of citizens' participation in the policy planning process. Many innovative web-resources are created and functioning in this direction where common citizens as well as specialists and public officials can make their opinions and ideas available to state authorities. For example, by using the web-resource www.challenge.gov various US state authorities publish contests of ideas regarding specific projects directed at sector development. Public officials can freely use this webpage for implementation of innovative ideas and even receive monetary awards for it sometimes. At the same time, they can offer specific proposals to state institution. 
· Exchange of ideas takes place not only by using web-resources of federal importance but also through web-pages of specific state agencies. For example, the US State Department's web project "Opinion Space 2.0" (www.state.gov/opinionspace/) enables all those concerned to express their opinion about directions and tasks of the US foreign policy. Currently 24 different departments use IdeaScale application on their own website www.ideascale.com) which enables the viewer of a specific governmental online resource to express his opinion about some significant problem related to development of open government policy. 

· In order to facilitate access of users to various online projects and services initiated by the government, a large-scale web-portal www.usa.gov has been created and functioning. It facilitates access to all those informational resources which are administered by the US Government’s various departments and agencies in Internet space. The web-portal increases availability for those wishing to use electronic services and required information in informational space and it represents virtual gates of America actually.  

We have considered only an incomplete list of websites which are actively developed for increasing the degree of transparency, accountability, involvement of citizens in social-political process by the Federal Government. It should also be mentioned that this is a very scarce list of existing online projects and certain state agencies introduce new technologies, decisions, communication technologies, use social media, publish "Open Government" reports, and improve their own web-resources based upon principles of openness, accountability, transparency and engagement within the scope of their competence, without directives from the central government. 
We can confidently say that, in the use of modern technologies “Open Government Partnership” implies the establishment of new standards of openness and transparency. These approaches became the basis of an open government declaration and four main approaches have been formulated:  
1. Increasing the availability of information about governmental activities;

2. Supporting civic participation;

3. Implementing the highest standards of professional integrity throughout our administrations;

4. Increasing access to new technologies for openness and accountability

Action plans of involved states in the format of “Open Government Partnership” are creating on the basis of above mentioned approaches, and therefore, the action plan of Georgia should be prepared regarding declared principles.  
Analysis of “Open Government Partnership” Action Plan of Georgian
According to the requirements published on the official web-site of “Open Government Partnership” http://www.opengovpartnership.org/ogp-action-plan-template member states’ action plan should consists of three parts:
1. In the introductory part of the Action Plan there should be described why it is important to engage in open government initiative and which strategic challenges of the country are to be addressed with the worked out action plan. 
2. In the second part of the action plan there should be described the achievements of a country which has declared in accordance with the principles of open government.
3. In the third part of the action plan there should be given to the obligations, member country is going to implement during next two years. 

The action plan is drawn up in 6 main directions:
1. Transparency, accountability and effectiveness of public service

· To implement the concept of “Public Service Halls” uniting different services in one place;
· To implement and monitor electronic asset declaration system;
· To elaborate and implement electronic system of HR management;
· To elaborate the list of information to be published on the web sites of ministries and other public agencies;
· To elaborate and implement special teaching program for public service employees – “Ethics in Public Service”.

2. Transparency of state procurement system

· To manage tenders through e-system;
· To elaborate and implement electronic system for submission of public procurement annual plans and reports on exercised public procurement;
· To implement e-commerce (e-catalogue, e-ordering and e-invoicing systems).

3. Transparency of public finances 

· To elaborate mechanism for electronic filing of tax declarations;
· To implement program budgeting;
· To elaborate electronic program for budgeting;
· To elaborate mechanism for electronic management of tax invoices;
· To elaborate and implement guidelines for financial and compliance audit of foreign aid allocated to Georgia;
· To elaborate and implement guidelines for effective audit of foreign aid to Georgia.

4. Transparent and corruption-free private sector

· Transition to e-auction system;
· To create e-base of privatized objects and authorize representatives of private sector to update databases;
· To implement legislation that brings greater transparency to the ownership and finances of broadcast media;
· To elaborate revised rules on “transparency of financial condition of the Commercial Bank” in order to ensure the transparency of commercial banks’ financial conditions;
· To approve rules on publication of financial reports of insurance companies in accordance with international standards.

5. Administration of justice

· Expansion of the scope of jury trials (expansion based on the type of crime and territory);
· Introduction of lifetime appointment of judges;
· Inclusion of courts in the unified computer system;
· Creation and implementation of electronic case management program.

6. Transparency of political party financing

· To define Chamber of Control as a monitoring body of the funding of political parties and provided it with the mandate, the authority, as well as adequate resources to effectively supervise the funding of political parties;
· To elaborate standardized format for financial declaration of political parties;

· To define auditing standard of financing of political parties;

· To publish financial declaration of political parties and auditing reports;

· To establish limits on donations to political parties;
· To ensure transparency of donations to political parties and avoid secret donations;
· To impose prohibition of donations from legal persons to political parties.
We believe that existing document “Action Plan of Georgia” is only list of mixture of implemented projects/events and future activities and unfortunately does not have a conceptual nature. At the same time noticeable are two circumstances:  
1. The most of the points formulated in the Action Plan have been implemented by the government already. From our point of view, these points could be located in the part of the plan where it should be described the steps that already had been taken in accordance with the “Open Government Partnership” by the member states. 

2. The second noticeable circumstance, revealed during the analyses of the Action Plan of Georgia is that, the most of the formulated points belong to Good Governance sphere rather than Open Governance field. Of course, the incarnation of the concept of Open Governance means institutional implementation and further development of Good Governance, but the abovementioned cooperation of the international format, first of all, is directed to the formation of an environment oriented towards the transparency and engagement in the member states.   
Given these circumstances, we think that in the action plan of Georgia structural changes has to be made. Namely, points formulated in the plan which are already implemented and/or which implementation is already publicly declared should be put in introductory part of the Action Plan - Efforts to Date:   
· To implement the concept of “Public Service Halls” uniting different services in one place;

· To implement and monitor electronic asset declaration system;

· To manage tenders through e-system;

· To elaborate mechanism for electronic filing of tax declarations;

· To implement program budgeting;

· To elaborate electronic program for budgeting;

· Transition to e-auction system;

· To create e-base of privatized objects and authorize representatives of private sector to update databases;

· To implement legislation that brings greater transparency to the ownership and finances of broadcast media;

We also consider that, the areas identified in the Action Plan, belong to the Good Governance and E-Governance should be gathered in separate direction of block, which could be called an accountable and effective public and private sector:
· To elaborate and implement electronic system of HR management;

· To elaborate and implement special teaching program for public service employees – “Ethics in Public Service”;

· To elaborate and implement electronic system for submission of public procurement annual plans and reports on exercised public procurement;

· To implement e-commerce (e-catalogue, e-ordering and e-invoicing systems);

· To elaborate mechanism for electronic management of tax invoices;

· To elaborate and implement guidelines for financial and compliance audit of foreign aid allocated to Georgia;

· To elaborate and implement guidelines for effective audit of foreign aid to Georgia;

· To approve rules on publication of financial reports of insurance companies in accordance with international standards;

· To inclusion of courts in the unified computer system;

· Creation and implementation of electronic case management program.

In our opinion, a number of provisions those are included in the Action Plan does not comply with the declared principles of "Open-Government Cooperation", despite the fact that they themselves may be considered as a positive or significant changes. Therefore we consider that it would be better if the following points will not been recorded in the Action Plan:
· Expansion of the scope of jury trials (expansion based on the type of crime and territory);

· Introduction of lifetime appointment of judges;

· To define Chamber of Control as a monitoring body of the funding of political parties and provided it with the mandate, the authority, as well as adequate resources to effectively supervise the funding of political parties;

· To define auditing standard of financing of political parties;

· To elaborate standardized format for financial declaration of political parties;

· To establish limits on donations to political parties;

· To ensure transparency of donations to political parties and avoid secret donations;

· To impose prohibition of donations from legal persons to political parties. 

We also believe that it is necessary to reflect in the Action Plan the main achievements which, in terms of the international principles of open government, are already established in Georgia. We believe that the most successful and highlighted projects of the policy of openness are:

1. Public Access to the Online Asset Declaration System of Georgian Senior Public Officials www.declaration.ge 
2. The successful implementation of Unified System of State Procurement https://tenders.procurement.gov.ge 
3. Public access to the electronic database of normative acts of Georgia www.matsne.gov.ge 

4. Access to Financial Reports of Political Associations and Electoral Subjects http://old.cec.gov.ge/financial/ 

5. Access to Information about the State Budget and the Budget Figures www.mof.ge 

6. Database of the Supreme Court's Decisions http://prg.supremecourt.ge/    

We believe that abovementioned socially important public accession to public information, which has already been implemented in Georgia, is real prerequisite for development of projects related to openness.
IDFI's Proposals Regarding to the Content of "Open Government Partnership" Action Plan of Georgia
Based on international practice and our own experience “The Institute for Development of Freedom of Information” considers reasonable to be added a separate direction “Access to Public Information” and “Civic Engagement” in the Action Plan of Georgia of “Open Government Partnership”. 
We definitely consider the implementation of the next important initiatives for the further development of above mentioned direction:

· Access to Public information
1. The third chapter of the General Administrative Code of Georgia (Freedom of Information) in conformity with modern requirements, in particular:
· Implementing and elaborating of legislative changes necessary for the requesting, issuing and receiving of public information electronically;

· Specification of the information and technical characteristics of public register of public information for the effective establishing of provision in terms of the principles of openness;

· Establishing of a new definition of institutional independence and responsibility of the person responsible for issuing public information. 
2. Proactive publishing of public information and reform of public electronic space of Georgia in terms of the principles of openness. 

· Elaborate the project of resolution of Prime Minister of Georgia (or the president of Georgia) to determine the list of proactive disclosure of public information on the official web-pages of public authorities and technical standards for the proactively disclosed public information;
· Gradual introduction of proactive disclosure of public information at the official web-sites of public authorities and technical standards of web-sites (2012 – President of Georgia, Government of Georgia, Governments and Ministries of Abkhazia and Adjara, Ministries of Georgia, Self-governing Cities / 2013-2014   - Legal Entities of Public Law, State Sub-Agency, Administrations of Governor, regulatory Commissions, Self-governing units and other administrative bodies); 
· Apart from the public information determined by the list for proactive disclosure, the administrative organs will be bound to process, create and publish other socially important datasets within the scope of their activities and competence (e.g. environment pollution background/the Ministry of Environment Protection of Georgia, criminogenic map of Tbilisi / the Ministry of Internal Affairs of Georgia, the map of regional distribution of social assistance/the Ministry of Labour, Health and Social Assistance of Georgia etc); 
· Within the scope of their activities and competence of the Administrative bodies, development of the concept and implementation of the electronic database for the purpose of access to various socially important information - www.data.gov.ge;
· Elaboration and implementation of the concept of e-resource related to access to public information and openness - www.foia.gov.ge where there will be published statistical data concerned to the issuing of public information, reports of December 10, guidelines and other information. The web-resource, in addition, should be taking over the function of the electronic portal of requests of public information, which will allow requesting public information electronically from all public authorities of Georgia;
· Creation of a new module of the web-site of Statistics Department of Georgia (GeoStat), publishing easily perceptible statistical and research components for the purpose of increasing access to statistical data.
· In order to increase public trust and based on the principle of openness, we consider it important to create electronic resource, where ongoing or planned large-scale national programs/projects, constructions, foreign grants and financial assistance, allocations from the reserve funds of the President of Georgia or the Government of Georgia - www.spendings.gov.ge will be placed separately; (in the case of the problems related to the creation of separate e-resource, above mentioned information may be placed at the official web-site of the Government of Georgia.)
· Elaboration of a guideline of requirements of the minimum technical and informational content for official web-sites of public authorities. (Guideline for External Use of Web 2.0);

Before the elaborate of the project of resolution, we suggest that, the annex of the Action Plan of Georgia should be containing the informational and technical requirements, which must be considered in draft resolution. 
	Annex 1


	The minimum list of public information which will be subjected to the proactive disclosure at the official web-site of public authorities (PA) 

	General Information about PA
	· Information about full name, a photos, a complete biographies, description of competencies, contact information (working e-mail, Reception Office (or Assistant Director’s) telephone and fax numbers of the Directors of a PA, deputy directors, directors of structural and territorial units, State Sub-Agencies and legal entities of public law (if any);

· PA system structure (structural tree) and description;

· PA’s email and postal address, phone and fax numbers of public relations office of a PA;
· Texts of regulatory legal acts (statute/rules, regulations and/or other legal acts) of PA’s activities (including structural units, Sub-Agencies and legal entities of public law); 

· Annual report of  activities of a PA;

	Separate section related to the freedom of information on the PA’s web-page 

 www./   /.gov.ge/foi  
	· PA’s Annual reports in which will be announced plans and reports related to the openness of a PA;
· Identity of the public servant responsible for ensuring a free access to public information (Name, Surname) position, contact information, working e-mail, phone and fax numbers;
· Legal acts pertaining to request for, access to, provision of, refusal for the provision of, classification of information and other freedom-of-information-related issues;

· Availability of administrative complaints and information request forms/samples for downloading on a PA website;
· complete annual reports submitted to the President and the Parliament of Georgia in accordance with Clause 49 of the General Administrative Code of Georgia and the archives of these reports;
· Public registry of the statements entered in PA in accordance with Clauses 40 and 37 of the General Administrative Code of Georgia (the content, date, number of pages of information given, the contents of the reaction - the refusal, partial, complete);

· Statements issued by a PA in accordance with clauses 40 and 37 of the General Administrative Code of Georgia;

· Availability of requesting public information electronically, similarly modules integrated on the web-page of Revenue Service of Georgia;

	The list of the public and limited use of information systems under the governance of PA, description and conditions of use

	· Databases, Registries and others;

	Statistical information collected and processed by PA

	· Information about major indicators reflecting current situations with regard to main activities of a PA and their development dynamics;

	Information about human resources of PA
	· List of available vacancies of a PA;

· List of qualification requirements of candidates for vacancies of a PA and rules of competitions;

· Results of the competition for occupying public positions;
· Description of procedures for submitting claims against the rules and outcomes of the contests for PA vacancies, the description of the appeal procedure by means of administrative proceedings;


	Information concerning PA state procurement, (Tenders, competitions and other types of purchases) state property privatization (E / public auctions, direct sale, or the other way)

	· Annual plan;
· Quarterly report;

· Annual report;

· Copies of the agreement signed by a PA;

	Information related to the funding and estimate of PA

	· Approved budget of a PA;
· The balance of the budget, information of budget appropriations, quarterly/annual reports of the budget execution;

· Financial rates determined / approved on the basis of legal acts of public authority officials and staff of a PA;
· The list of the projects and programs (social, goal-oriented, research, scientific, educational, certain areas on the development of directed and other.) implemented on the basis of the appropriate legal act and/or on its own initiative, customer of which, performer or the any part of the sales operation a PA represents;

· Total estimate of financial assistance for a PA allocated by foreign governments, international organizations and other government units;
· Information about the disbursements (if any) from the President and the Government reserve funds for a PA.



	Legal acts
	· Normative acts;
· Individual acts;

· Including individual acts of limited use of information (date of receipt, the motive of concealment, date of concealment, identity of the person responsible for concealment)
· Review of the court cases, in which one side represents a PA or its official (court decisions, judgments, resolutions, texts of commands, information about their legal force, etc.)


	Annex 2

	Technical Requirements

	Access to web-content
	· Important data (documents, legal acts, plans and etc.) placed at the official web-site of a PA should be located in simple understanding format – machine readable format (XML, JSON or other sources);
· Budget documents, reports of procurements, statistical data placed at the official web-site of a PA should be located in XLS format, where filter and sorting of information will be available.  



· Civic Engagement 
Unfortunately, in the draft of the action plan there is not reflected important part of the concept of “Open Government” such as civic engagement in public policy and decision making processes. We believe that this (G2C Government to Citizen) is one of the central issues because governments change their approaches from government-oriented to community-oriented through using of modern technologies. They are forming the environment where citizens are engaged in governmental activities and have the right to vote in the decision-making processes. Therefore, we significantly consider a number of initiatives in order to increase civic engagement.  
· Adaptation of  web-sites of state authorities to requirements of web 2.0, integration such kind of modules, which enable citizens to submit their own ideas and opinions on specific issues to directors of state agencies, articulate their approaches regarding the specific issues, get answers, to be public hearing of ideas; 

· Elaboration and publishing of strategic plans of public communications by state authorities –Public Relations Department of a governmental agency should develop and publicize strategies of communication to citizens, which will address not only to improvement of the quality of service but also will be directed to increase of engagement of citizens in their activities and evaluation; 
· To elaborate an open platform of public dialogue www.opinions.gov.ge, where the platform for online discussions and consultations is held, calendar of events necessary for the e-engagement is published, questions to high-ranking officials can be asked and answers be received, various issues are being discussed at online forum, citizens have the opportunity to make their own proposals initiated, vote/do not give vote specific surveys, engage in considerations on government-initiated programs/projects/strategies;
· Introduction/inculcation of electronic platform of petition www.petitions.gov.ge. Any, who wishes can initiate electronic petition by utilization of the above mentioned resource. And in case of collecting enough number of e-signatures (Example: 10 000 signatures) issue raised by the society will be discussed by the state authority of that competence. Results of the discussion will be published openly and attached to the petition page.

· Electronic Record Management
Access to public documentation is considered as one of the main indicator in Open Government. The most important part of the document flow of modern public sector represents information in electronic form, which in essence is the same public information as the any other information existing in public authorities. Unfortunately, in Georgian reality access to electronic public information and its further archiving is not provided.  
As a part of the Action Plan of Georgia following can be planned regarding the transparency of state archives:
· Elaboration and further implementation of a concept for the relevant legal framework of electronic record management.

We also believe that the Action Plan of Georgia should reflect further developments of the already established achievements in the "open government" format, in particular:

· To increase the list of those officials (with addition of the heads of Legal Entities of the Public Law in the first place) whose asset declarations are subject to publishing on the search engine of declarations   www.declaration.ge;
· For the purpose of openness of unified system of state procurement, unregistered users should be given access to the procuring organization’s procurement plans and accounts - www.tenders.procurement.gov.ge; 

· The Ministry of Finance of Georgia should ensure the accession to the quarterly/annual reports of program budget of budgetary organizations - www.mof.ge;
· As the analogue of the database of court decisions implemented by the Supreme Court of Georgia http://prg.supremecourt.ge/, will also be made available database of General Court decisions. 
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